
ADDENDUM NO. 2/Bid Postponement 

 

TERM AREEMENT FOR SEWER LINING PROGRAM 

AREA North, Central, South and Far South 

SPECIFICATION NO., 133738, 133739, 133743 and 133744 

 

For which bids will be opened in the office of the Department of Procurement Services, 

Room 103, Chicago, Illinois, 60602 on January 19, 20, 21 and 22, 2016 have been 

rescheduled to February 2, 3, 4, and 5, 2016 

at 11:00 a.m. Central Time: 

 

BIDDERS WILL ACKNOWLEDGE RECIEPT OF THIS ADDENDUM IN THE 

SPACE PROVIDED ON THE PROPOSAL PAGE 

 

NOTICE OF ADDENDUM OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

REVISED SPECIFICATIONS 

 

1.  Book 2, page 29:  For Bid Items 7A and 7B change the unit of measure from 

“LF” to “VF”.  Replace the current page 29 with the attached page 29 with 

“ADDENDUM #2 noted next to the page number. 

 

2. Book 3, Division I, page 43: In Section 127.15 Field Quality Control, delete the 

second paragraph in its entirety.  Replace the current page 43 with the attached 

page 47 with “ADDENDUM #2” noted next to the page number. 

 

3. Book 3, Division II, page 74: In Item 12-SEWER EXCAVATION AND 

BACKFILL, under the heading “Materials”, delete the first two words “Sewer 

grout” and replace them with the word “Backfill”. Replace the current page 74 

with the attached page 74 with “ADDENDUM #2” noted next to the page 

number. 

 

4. Book 3, Division II, page 85 and 86: In Item 26-REMOVAL AND 

REPLACEMENT OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT, remove the section titled 

“Textured Asphalt Pavement” in its entirety.  Replace the current pages 85 and 

86 with the attached pages 85 and 86 with “ADDENDUM #2” noted next to the 

page number. 

 

5. Book 3, Division II, page 87:  In Item 27 – COMBINATION CURB AND 

GUTTER REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT, under the heading “Description” 

delete the word “sidewalk” in the first and second sentences and replace it with 

the words “curb and gutter”.  Replace the current page 87 with the attached page 

87 with “ADDENDUM #2” noted next to the page number. 

 

6. Book 3, Division II, page 90:  In Item 29-SPECIAL SOILS WASTE 

REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL, under the heading “ Work Included”, in the 

fourth paragraph, delete the reference to “…items 28B and 28C.” and replace it 

with “…items 29B and 29C.” 

 



CLARIFICATIONS 

 

For questions 7 through 22, referenced numbers state the page number of the pdf 

(issued on the CD) and not the specification page number published at the bottom 

of the page.   All other questions reference the page number of the specification 

book.  

 
7. Question:  Bid items 7a and 7b (book 3, pg 72) – These structures currently have 

a unit of LF.  Can you change it to VF as per your spec on pg 72 of book 3? 

 

Answer:  The unit of measure for items 7A “LINER FOR 36-INCH DIA 

STRUCTURES” and item 7B “LINER FOR 48-INCH DIA STRUCTURES” has 

been changed from LF to VF.  (See the revised Book 2, page 29 included in 

Addendum #2). 
  

8. Question:  Bid items 6N, 6O, and 6P (Book 3, Pg 70) - Is this 150 psi CIPP liner 

to be used in gravity sewer pipes to meet the “water sewer separation act?”  Is this 

150 psi CIPP liner to be used in potable water mains?  Is this 150 psi CIPP liner to 

be used in force mains?  Each of these applications have differences in the 

product design, resin, end fittings, required cleaning, installation techniques and 

ultimately costs.  
 

Answer:  Per the information stated in the “Description” portion of Item 6- Sewer 

Lining, Item 6 is intended for use in the sewer mains only.  There is no intent, or 

mention in this specification, of use of this item in potable water lines or force 

mains.  The use of the 150 PSI Liner will be as directed by the Commissioner in 

locations where it is deemed appropriate by the City to protect future or existing 

facilities. 

9. Question:  Will a pressure test be required for pipes that require the 150 psi CIPP 

liners?  If yes, at what pressure?  

 

Answer:  There is no requirement for specific pressure testing of the 150 psi 

liner.  The requirements for design thickness and material parameters as included 

in the specifications shall be applicable for all sewer liners. 

10. Question:  Book 3, Pg 38 – The spec requires 3
rd

 party testing in 6 

areas.  Thickness, Flexural Strength and Flexural Modulus make perfect sense and 

are the standard for CIPP testing.  However, would you please remove the 

requirement to perform the following 3 tests for the reasons listed below? 

 

a. Tensile Strength – The spec says we are to conform to ASTM F1216 

(book 3, pg46) and references it many times.  ASTM F1216 clearly states 

at the bottom of page 2 that tensile strength is “for pressure pipes 

only.”  It’s important to note the resin needed to meet higher tensile 

strengths are more expensive and have a lower flexural properties, so the 

liner needs to be thicker.  I’ve attached ASTM F1216 for your reference. 



b. Compressive Strength – This physical property test is not mentioned in 

ASTM F 1216 and doesn’t have any quality assurance meaning in 

evaluating CIPP.  

c. Hardness – The ASTM D-2240 referenced in your spec is the “Standard 

Test Method for Rubber Property.”  This physical property test is not 

mentioned in ASTM F 1216 and doesn’t have any quality assurance 

meaning in evaluating CIPP.  

 

Answer:  ASTM F1216 is used as a reference to minimum industry standards.  

The value of 3,000 psi for tensile strength is noted as applicable to pressure pipe 

only for purposes of minimal acceptance.  This does not preclude the contractor 

from testing to determine the actual tensile strength of the material used on 

gravity sewers. 

Testing of the tensile strength, compressive strength and hardness are intended to 

provide quantitative information about the materials employed for use on this 

project.  As no minimum required values have been stipulated in the 

specifications, these tests alone will not be used to determine acceptance of the 

materials.  However, the results of this testing may provide guidance to the owner 

relative to the consistency and other potential issues of the product and 

installation.  Therefore, the requirement for performing testing to determine 

tensile strength, compressive strength and hardness shall remain as part of the 

specifications. 

 

11. Question:  Book 1, pg 127 states the DBE goals as 19.6% MBE and 6.9% 

WBE.  Book 2, pg 6 states the DBE goals as 24% MBE and 4% WBE.  Which is 

correct? 

  

Answer:  Book 2 states the goals for Minority Business Enterprise Commitment 

at 24% and the Women Business Enterprise Commitment at 4% in accordance 

with item 22 of the Requirements for Bidding and Instructions to Bidders found in 

Book 2.  This defines the minimum limit for the portion of the work to be sub-

contracted to business enterprises with ownership in accordance with these 

categories. 

Book 1 refers to the minimum goals for Equal Employment Opportunity.  The 

stated goals for Minority Participation of 19.6% and for Female Participation of 

6.9%, defines the minimum limits for the makeup of the aggregate workforce 

employed on the work covered under this contract. 

 

12. Question:  Book 3, Pg 40 – Describes the curing process with hot water.  The 

spec says we are to conform to ASTM F1216 (book 3, pg46) and references it 

many times.  ASTM F1216 describes a hot water cure AND curing with 

steam.  Steam curing is green engineering as it only uses about 10% of the water, 

it shortens the install process because you don’t need to wait for the water to heat 

up and saves costs.  The City of Chicago has allowed steam curing on the 

previous lining contracts.  Can you please confirm that steam curing will be 

allowed on this contract? 



  

Answer:  Steam curing, in accordance with ASTM F1216 is acceptable. 

13. Question:   Book 3, Pg 49 – Can you tell us what products are approved for the 

structure rehabilitation process? 
 

Answer:  As stated in the “Description” portion of the specification for item 7 

“LINER FOR SEWER STRUCTURES” the liner shall consist of a cured in place 

liner in accordance with Section 127 of the specifications.  The contractor shall 

provide material submittals for review and acceptance by the Commissioner as 

with the sewer pipe lining products.  There are no ‘pre-approved’ products. 

14. Question:  Book 1, Pg 35 states the warranty as 1 year.  Book 3, Pg 40 state the 

warranty as 5 years.  Which is correct? 

  

Answer:  The warranty shall be for a five year period.  As stated in Book 1, 

Section E. Warranties, paragraph 1, the warranty is for a period of one year, 

”except as otherwise specifically stated in other parts of the Contract…”.  Section 

127.8 - Warranty in Book 3 is the other part of the contract which specifically 

states that “The Contractor must warrant the work in its entirety for a period of 5 

years.” 

15. Question:  Book 2, Pg 13, Item 4 – Builder’s Risk Insurance.   Would you allow 

us to use Installation Floater insurance in lieu of Builder’s Risk insurance? 

Builder’s Risk insurance is designed to cover above ground structures under 

construction. Installation Floater coverage is essentially a specialized type of 

builders risk coverage written to insure direct physical loss or damage to 

materials, supplies, machinery, and equipment, which the contractor has 

contracted to install or erect. Since the scope of work to be performed consists of 

furnishing all materials, labor and equipment required to rehabilitate the sewer 

pipe, Installation Floater insurance would be the appropriate type of coverage to 

provide the insurance protection necessary to successfully complete this 

project.  Can you please confirm the Installation Floater insurance will be 

considered an approved equal to Builder’s Risk insurance? 

  

Answer:  No.  Bidders shall base their bids upon the Builder’s Risk Insurance as 

required  in the specifications.  

16. Question:  Book 2, Pg 13, Item 5.  Will we get an extra to cover RR insurance 

and flaggers if the section to be lined is within the right of way of a RR either 

running parallel or going under the tracks?  The RR insurance can cost between 

$3,000 and $15,000 per occurrence depending on the RR buy in program.  If no 

extra will be given, can you add a line item for RR insurance and flaggers for the 

rare case that we’re asked to perform that work?  How many times in the past 3 

years have you lined within a RR right of way? 

  

Answer:  Typically sewer lining projects have not required RR insurance and/or 

flaggers associated with work within a railroad right of way.  However, if such 



RR insurance and/or flaggers do become necessary to perform certain work, the 

City may opt to modify the contract to include payment for such work, or, at the 

City’s discretion, the work requiring RR insurance and/or flaggers may be deleted 

from the scope of the sub-order. 

 

17. Question:  What is the city’s budget to spend on each of these lining contract per 

year? 

  

Answer:  The City’s goal for the aggregate of the five contracts is to line a total 

of approximately 50 miles of sewers annually.   The magnitude of the scope of the 

work to be performed under each individual contract is indicated by the 

approximate length of sewers to be lined per year as identified under the General 

Description of Work found in Book 2 of each contract.  The approximate range of 

expenditures anticipated for each contract is identified in the Advertisement for 

Bids for each individual contract. 

18. Question:  Can you please supply us with a list of attendees at the pre-bid 

meeting? 

  

Answer:  See attachment. 

 

19. Question:   Book 3, Pg 46 states “Transport impregnated liner at a temperature 

below 40 degrees Centigrade and out of direct sunlight and install within 24-hours 

of wetting.”  This language was appropriate 30 years ago when the catalysts used 

with resins allowed a shelf life for a CIPP liner of 5 days.  However, today’s 

catalysts allow a shelf life of 30 – 45 days and standard practice is to have a 

week’s worth of liners wet out at once and delivered on a refrigerated truck to 

maximize efficiencies.  Can you please remove “and install within 24-hours of 

wetting” from the spec? 

 

Answer:  The storage and transport requirements included in these specifications 

have served the City well on the hundreds of miles of sewers the City has lined 

over the past few years.  All bids shall be based on meeting the specified 

requirements.  However, the successful contractor may choose to submit materials 

capable of meeting the performance specifications utilizing alternative storage 

and transport requirements.  The City may choose to evaluate such alternatives for 

incorporation into the work. 

20. Question:  Book 3, Pg 48 Section 127.15  states “At each connection between the 

service lateral and main sewer pipe the Contractor must test the water tightness of 

each joint by either conducting an air pressure test or dye water flood test.”  Is this 

test performed before or after the main line section is lined?  Are we to perform a 

dye test from the toilet of the house to see if the service is live?  This is an entirely 

different subject and would need separate bid items and associated specification 

for entry into a resident’s home.  When it says to test each joint is that just the 

connection joint of each lateral or each joint in the lateral?  If we are to test each 

joint in the lateral, then how far up the lateral do we need to go?  What is the 



purpose of this test?  (To determine which lateral will be lined?  Which laterals 

will be opened?) 

  

Answer:  In Book 3, Division I, Section 127.15 “Field Quality Control”, delete 

the second paragraph in its entirety.   Testing of joints in connection with service 

laterals will not be required.  (See the revised Book 3, page 43 in Addendum #2.)  

21. Question:  Would the City of Chicago extend the bid dates of these 5 term 

contracts at least 30 days?  I submitted a request for a time extension previously 

and was told it was rejected due to being the only contractor requesting an 

extension.  Please keep in mind, Insituform and Kenny were the only two 

contractors that bid on all 5 projects in 2013 and only two projects had an 

additional bidder.  Of course, Kenny wouldn’t need any extra time to gather data 

and align subcontractors because they already have all the data and subcontractors 

from the past 3 years.  This is a large bid package and we have many questions 

that need to be answered.  I’ve also submitted a FOIA request that is in 

process.  Did I mention Hanukkah, Kwanzaa, Christmas, Festivus, New Year’s 

Day or the Notre Dame game and the associated difficulty of getting business 

done as we try to contact all the necessary subcontractors?  (Even World War I 

paused for Christmas)  It’s not reasonable to allow 15 business days from bid 

advertisement to opening for a contractor to do the following: 
  

a.       Review 473 pages of spec per project. 

b.      Go through the individual scopes for each of the 5 projects.  

c.       Put together an RFQ’s and get the legal ad in the paper. 

d.      Contact subcontractors and make sure all bid items have a competitive, 
responsible subcontractor in place. 

e.      Coordinate all DBE requirements.  

  

Answer:  The Bid Opening dates for the various contracts have been revised per 

various areas. 

22. Question:  Book 2, Pg 20 states “However, no work will be permitted between 

the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. Any variation from these restricted working 

hours to include extended shift hours and daytime work, if any, can only be 

permitted with the written approval of the Commissioner.”  Much of the CIPP 

work on this project (anything over 21” pipe) will likely require a variation from 

this work hours.  “Around the clock” work is very common with these large pipe 

diameters in the bid quantities.  Allowing steam curing will help speed up the 

process.  Can you please confirm if CIPP installation operations necessitate a 

variation from these work hours to facilitate installation, it shall be granted? 

 

Answer:  In addition to the approval of the Commissioner, work during extended 

hours will be dependent upon the specific limitations of working hours as 

specified in the permits issued by CDOT for work in the Public Way.  Historically 

variations to the stated working hours have been granted to facilitate the best 

interests of the City when warranted by the specific installation process, 

conditions in the field or coordination with other work being done to benefit the 



City.  Variations will not be permitted simply to accommodate the convenience of 

the Contractor or to alleviate conditions the Contractor has created.  

23. Question:  Traffic Control - At what point in a work does the traffic control pay 

item begin?  Start of cleaning/CCTV work or start of lining work?  Where can we 

obtain a listing of all the arterial streets? City of Chicago website? 

  

Answer:  Traffic Control – As specifically stated in Bid Item #2- “Traffic Control 

and Protection”, under the paragraph labeled “Measurement”, it clearly states that 

Traffic Control will only be considered for payment associated with liner 

installation and point repairs.  Traffic Control associated with cleaning, surveying 

and other work is considered incidental to the various pay items and will not be 

measured and paid under this item. 

 

A current list of the street classifications prepared by CDOT is included in 

Attachment 1 at the end of this Addendum #2.  

 

24. Question:  Pipe Entry for Mineral Deposits - How will man entry into pipe for 

removal of concrete be paid?  As an incidental cost to a line item which will drive 

up the prices or as a change order?  

 

Answer:  In accordance with bid item #3 -“Main Sewer Cleaning”, mineral 

deposits and construction debris that may interfere with the installation of the 

sewer lining is to be removed.  This includes concrete debris which is not bound 

to the pipe walls, such as chunks of fractured concrete.  For concrete wash-out 

material that has been deposited into the sewers prior to curing, and then 

subsequently setting up inside the sewer, bonding to the walls of the pipe, all 

reasonable attempts should be made to break up and remove the material by 

conventional cleaning methods within the scope of this pay item.   Materials that 

cannot be removed in this manner shall be considered to be outside the scope of 

this work.  In this case either a contract modification will be implemented for 

additional removal efforts (such as man entry) or a point repair may be required 

under the terms of the contract (Bid Item #11), or the section of sewer in question 

may be deleted from the scope of the contract, at the discretion of the 

Commissioner. 

 

25. Question:  Concrete Wash Out - Increasingly we have encountered sewer pipe 

containing concrete washout.  This leaves a layer of solid concrete on top of dirt 

that has been accumulating in the sewer for years.  How will this be paid for?  

Incidental to line item or change order?  

 

Answer:  See the response to Question #24 above. 

 

26. Question:  Buried Manholes - How will excavation/pavement removal for 

manhole access during the initial cleaning phase be paid for? As incidental to a 

line item or change order? 

 

Answer:  Buried manholes to be located, exposed and adjusted shall be paid for 

under Bid Item #19-“Locate, Expose and Adjust Buried Manholes”.  This work 



shall be as directed by the Commissioner and may be required during the initial 

cleaning phase, or any time throughout the duration of the contract.  This shall 

include all work associated with locating and adjusting the manhole, including 

excavation, backfill and pavement restoration. 

   

27. Question:  Mobilization - What is the percentage total bid that can be in 

mobilization? 

  

Answer:  There is not a limit specified for the percentage of the total bid price 

attributable to the item “Mobilization” as a whole.  However, the maximum 

allowable price for Bid item 1A -“Job Set Up” shall not exceed 3% of the 

aggregate total of Bid Items #2 through #29 inclusive. 

 

 

28. Question:  Protruding Taps - Please clarify the depth of protrusion for the 

“Cutting of Protruding Lateral Sewer Connections” item?  How deep in to the 

mainline sewer constitutes enough for payment?  How far up laterals does the 

CCTV need to scan for the pre-lining phase? 

 

Answer:  As noted in the “Description” under Bid Item #10-“Cutting Protruding 

Lateral Sewer Connections”, only pipes protruding greater than one inch into the 

sewer main will be included for payment under this item, regardless of the 

diameter of the sewer main or the diameter of the lateral pipe. 

 

Pre-lining video inspection is included as part of Bid Item #3 -“ Main Sewer 

Cleaning”.  As stated in the third paragraph under the heading “Work Included”, 

it states  that a clear view at least 2 feet up the up the lateral pipe shall be 

provided. 

 

29. Question:  Sections between lining - When there are gaps between sections of 

sewer pipe to be lined, but the gaps must be cleaned to facilitate lining, how will 

this be measured for payment? 

 

 Answer:  All main line sewer to be cleaned will be paid for under Bid Item #3- 

“Main Sewer Cleaning”.  If the Contractor feels sewers outside the limits as 

defined by the sub-order require cleaning, he shall notify the Commissioner in 

writing of the location(s) and the specific reasons the sewers outside the lining 

limits require cleaning.   The Commissioner shall have the sole discretion as to 

whether to have any sewers outside of the lining limits cleaned.  This may be 

done by extending the limits under Bid Item #3, or by having the work completed 

by others. 

 

30. Question:  OSHA requirements for confined space entry - New federal OSHA 

confined space entry regulations state that owners (City of Chicago) will have a 

data base of all previous air readings by structure.  Where can that be accessed or 

who will be the contact person at the City of Chicago for that information? 

 

Answer:  There is no current data available on air readings in the sewer 

structures.  All requests for information under this contract shall be directed in 



writing to the Mr. Wallace Davis III, General Superintendent, Department of 

Water Management, 1000 E. Ohio St. Chicago, Il 60611. 

 

31. Question:  Cleaning of Existing Catch Basins and Inlets - How will restrictor 

plate/apparatus, removal and replacement be measured for payment?  If the 

existing structure does not have a restrictor will one be placed after 

cleaning/lining? 

 

Answer:  Restrictor removal and replacement is not paid for directly, but is 

included in the work required under Bid Item #7-“Liner for Sewer Structures”.  

The restrictors are required to be removed to facilitate proper cleaning of catch 

basins in order to properly inspect and rod the drain connections as defined under 

Bid Item #4 – “Cleaning Existing Catch Basins and Inlets”. 

 

Placement of restrictors in structures that do not currently have them will be as 

directed by the Commissioner.  Restrictors will be provided by the City, at no cost 

to the Contractor, as stated in “Materials” section under Bid Item #7-“Liner for 

Sewer Structures”.   

 

32. Question:  Pavement Patching - Will the City of Chicago consider lowering the 

asphalt density requirements in “sensitive existing utility” areas?  Vibratory 

compaction of asphalt in areas of old/weak infrastructure can create very costly 

future repairs.  Especially in areas where old water main is located.  

 

Answer:  Asphalt density requirements will not be lowered.  All pavement 

restoration shall be completed in accordance with the IDOT, DWM and CDOT 

requirements. 

 

33. Question:  Can we get a predetermined length of protruding Taps that need to be 

cut – per pipe size? 

 

Answer:  See the response to Question #28 above. 

 

34. Question:  If the water is high but the Nozzle allows for a clear view of the invert 

will the video be acceptable? 

 

Answer:  Acceptance of video will be on a case by case basis depending upon the 

clarity and extent of the pipe wall that is visible.  High water in the pipe will not 

necessarily be a reason for rejection, as long as an adequate length of the entire 

pipe wall and invert can be clearly inspected.  If, in the sole discretion of the 

Commissioner, the video does not provide a clear view for adequate inspection, 

the contractor must repeat the cleaning and televise again to produce a clear 

observation of the pipe. 
  

35. Question:  Can we do a Final Inspection with No Jetter if the line is clearly clean 

and there are set up issues preventing us from following the Nozzle? 

 

Answer:  The post lining video inspection does not necessarily require the use of 

a jetter.  The acceptability of the video inspection will be a function of the ability 



to clearly observe and inspect all parts of the lined pipe.  In some cases where 

small wrinkles, bumps or ridges appear, the presence of water from the jetter can 

assist in determining the impact of such imperfections upon the acceptability of 

the liner. 

 

36. Question:  Do we need to do a reverse when there is no actual pipe to crawl (ie 

Drop Connections)? 

Answer:  Reverse set ups are only required when the initial approach is incapable 

of providing a clear view of the entire pipe.  If a clear view cannot be provided, a 

reverse set up will become necessary despite the presence of a drop connection. 

 

37. Question:  In Book 3, pg. 66-67 Item #7 Liner for Sewer Structures Materials 

spec states: “ Liner shall consist of a single continuous flexible felt tube fully 

impregnated with an unsaturated polyester resin or epoxy vinyl ester resin and 

catalysts system all as approved by the Commissioner.  Liner thickness shall be 

designed in accordance with ASTM F-1216 fully deteriorated 

host pipe conditions and the parameter values specified in section 127.”  “ 150 psi 

liners must conform to ANSI/NSF Standard 61.  The product must meet IEPA 

title 35 Subtitle F Chapter II as well as the AWWA Standards for water main 

quality pipe. Unless otherwise directed by the Commissioner” .  These statements 

are confusing.  Are they for pipe, not structures?  Have they been inserted 

erroneously?  Please clarify. 
 

Answer:  The materials statements are correct.  The liner for the structures shall 

be designed to meet the same standards of a pipe of the same diameter as the 

structure.  The design shall also meet the requirements of a pipe with an invert 

depth the same as the depth of the bottom of the structure.   

 

150 PSI liners are intended for use in structures which, in the opinion of the 

Commissioner, warrant additional liner protection due to their proximity to water 

main, water services or other proposed or existing features. 

 

38. Question:  In Book 3, pg. 66-67 Item #7 Liner for Sewer Structures Measurement 

states:  “Measurement for this item will be per Vertical Foot of liner as measured 

from the rim down to the floor for catch basins, inlets and other structures.  For 

manholes, the vertical measurement shall be from the rim down to the bench for 

manholes on sewers 36” and from the rim down to the spring line of the pipe for 

sewers 36” and larger.  Measurement will be made to the nearest whole foot.”  In 

book 2 bid item #7 is a LF unit of measure, Please clarify.  Also is it the intent to 

line the frame, or should the liner stop at the frame?  Please clarify. 

 

Answer:  The liner is intended to cover the lower portion of the frame (below the 

rim) to provide a tight seal of the joint between the frame and the concrete or 

masonry walls of the structure. 

 

In Book 2, on the Schedule of Prices, the units for line items 7A and 7B have 

been changed to “VF”.  See the revised page  30 of Book 2 included in this 

addendum.  



 

39. Question:  In Book 3 Item #12 Sewer Excavation and Backfill Measurement 

states: “ Trench backfill volume will be calculated based on the average end area 

of materials compacted in place….”  Shouldn’t that read that the Sewer 

Excavation will be measured per cy?   Please clarify. 
 

Answer:  Bid Item #12-“Sewer Excavation and Backfill” will be calculated per 

cubic yard for payment as stated in the paragraph labeled “Measurement”.  Given 

that there are various methods available to calculate volume, the intent of this 

statement is to specify the average end area method as the means for calculating 

this volume for the purpose of payment for this line item. 

 

The volume of materials excavated can sometimes be difficult to determine due to 

collapses, voids, undetermined in-situ soil density, etc.  The pay limits for 

compacted backfill are more clearly defined.  Therefore the volume of backfill 

compacted in place is used as the standard to determine volume for payment 

under this line item. 

 

40. Question:  When replacing a collapsed manhole (Item #14) will the contractor 

also be paid Item #12 Sewer Excavation and Backfill? 
 

Answer:  No. For Item 14-REPLACE COLLAPSED MANHOLES, as noted 

under the heading “Work Included”, excavation and placement and compaction of 

backfill are included in the work to be paid for under this Item 14.  As noted 

under the headings “Measurement” and “Method of Payment” there are distinct 

pay items for additional depth of the manhole.  This is intended to compensate for 

the difference in effort associated with excavation and backfill at greater depths. 

 
41. Question: Item #26 Removal and Replacement of Asphalt Pavement seems to 

include replacement of textured asphalt pavement.  Textured asphalt pavement is 

a much different process than normal asphalt paving that  will require a separate 

subcontractor to perform this work.  Can a separate pay item be made for removal 

and replacement of textured asphalt pavement? 
 

Answer:  Textured asphalt will not be required for work included under this 

contract.  The heading “Textured Asphalt Pavement” and the eleven paragraphs 

under this heading on pages 85 and 86 of Book 3 shall be deleted in their entirety. 

(See the revised Book 3, pages 85 and 86 in this Addendum #2.) 

 

42. Question:  Item #29 Special Soils Waste Removal and Disposal.  Please clarify 

when we will be paid for Item 29B, and Item 29C.  For example, if the contractor 

has a point repair, will he be paid 1 ea. of either 29B or 29C? 

 

Answer:  The intent of the contract is that for each individual site location 

requiring excavation (involving line items 12, 14, 18, 19 or 22) one Waste 

Characterization Analysis (Item 29B) shall be performed.  If the results of the 

Waste Characterization Analysis indicate the presence of special waste, the 

contractor may (or may not) be directed to perform additional Waste 

Characterization Analyses at various locations within the proposed excavation, at 



the direction of the Commissioner, to more clearly define the limits of the special 

waste.  Each of such additional waste characterization analyses will be paid for 

individually under Bit item #29B.  In addition, where the initial waste 

characterization analysis indicates the presence of special waste, a single 

Historical Analysis and pH Testing shall be performed and paid for as a single 

Item # 29C. However, if the initial waste characterization analysis does not 

indicate the presence of special waste, then no Historical Analysis and pH Testing 

will be performed or paid for under Item #29C.   

 

43.  Question:  Will item 2A or 2B paid for Items 

#13,14,15,19,20,21,22,23,24,25,2627, 28?  Basically will we be paid for each 

crew, per each day that work is being performed? 

 

Answer:  As stated in the “Measurement” portion of the specification for Item 2- 

“Traffic Control and Protection” payment will be limited to work involving lining 

and repairs.  This may include work involving items 6, 7, 8, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15,18, 

19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and 28.   The extent and location of the work for 

each individual site will dictate whether traffic control is warranted.  For example, 

where by-pass pumping pits are located behind the curb along an arterial street, 

arterial traffic control (Item 2B) may not be warranted simply for by-pass 

pumping operations.  However, Item 2A may be warranted if pedestrian traffic 

control is necessary. 

 

Payment will be made one time for the day that a crew is employing traffic 

control associated with work involving the installation of lining or repairs that 

may involve the items listed herein.  Payment for the work of a crew on a given 

day will be either for Item 2A or 2B, but not both on the same day.  It shall be the 

contractor’s responsibility to manage and assign the crews to efficiently utilize the 

traffic control pay items. 

 

44. Question:  I am reviewing the above project.  It talks about dewatering in the 

description but I did not see boring’s.  Will there be a need for dewatering on this 

project? 

 

Answer:  This is an area-wide project, so no borings are supplied. Excavation on 

this contract will be performed for point repairs and by-pass pits for service 

connections.  Dewatering of the excavations may be required and is covered 

under various parts of the contract specifications, including, but not limited to, 

Section 111. PIPE AND STRUCTURE EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL and 

112. PUMPING, BAILING, AND DIVERSION. 

 

 

 

 

End of Addendum #2  


